
JKVS & CO
Chartered Accountants

5-A, Nandalal Jew Road, Kolkata-700026 (lndia) Phone : +91 33 2476 5068. E-mail : kolkata@ikvs.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Keshava Plantations Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Keshava Plantations Private Limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3!'t202!, the Statement of Profit and Loss

(including Other Comprehensive lncome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash

Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in

the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the lndian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,

2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 3!,202L, and its profit, total comprehensive lncome, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Audirors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of
Chartered Accountarrts of lndia (lCAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code

of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statement.

lnformation other than the Firrancial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Dlrectors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. l'he other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including annexure to the Board's
Report&other Shareholder's lnformation, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. lf, based on the work we have perfqrme{,_we conclude that there is a material misstatement
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of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with

respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial

position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity

of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the

lndian Accounting Standards (ln AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with (lndian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so"

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process"

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Companies Act 2013, we

are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's.use of the going concern basis of accounting

r/>r-,,^r, t';i\

.......contd,
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and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Refer to paragraph "material uncertainty related to going
concern" above in respect to our reporting in respect to going concern appropriateness. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

concern.

r Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 ("the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure A"a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive lncome, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

ln our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (lndian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 20L5, as amended from time to time;

.......contd.

2.

(c)

(d)

LL''
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Place: Kolkata
Date:10th lune,2O2i:

.......contd.

(e)

(f)

(c)

(h)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 202'J.

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

March 3t,2OZt from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the AcU

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these lnd AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this repor!

The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration during the year.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20!4, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

For JKVS & Co"

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.318086E

LJ*+o*-r 9",-tf '

(UtsavSaraf)

Partner
Membership No. 306932

U Dl N: 21306932AAAABJ 1026

il.

iii.

L,4j

Cnfnbred
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ANNEXURE.A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements"

section of our Report to the members ofKeshava Plantations Private Limited of even date)

We report that:

l. ln respect of Company's fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation of fixed assets.

(b) According to information and explanation given to us, fixed assets have been physically verified

during the year by the management and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such

physical verification. ln our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having

regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ll. The lnventories have been physically verified by the Management during the year. ln our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noted on physical verification
of inventory as compared to book records.

lll. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not
granted any loan to parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies

Act, 2013. Thus, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

lV. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any loans or investments during the year. The Company has neither issued any guarantee nor

has provided any security on behalf of any party.

V. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 lo 76 of the Companies Act 2013 and the
rules framed there under.

Vl. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of any cost records under Section 148

(1) of The Company Act, 2013.

Vll. Accordingtothe information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company,

(a) the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident

fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities and no such

dues were in arrears, as at 3l"st March, 202Lfor a period of more than six months from the date

they became payable

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, there are no dues of taxes and cess which have not been deposited on account
of dispute.

Vlll. Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank. The

Company has no outstanding loan from Government or any outstanding debentures, ffi
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lX. The Company did not raise any money by way of lnitial public offer or further public offer (including

debt instruments), however short term loans raised during the year have been utilized for the purpose

for which they were raised.

X. According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit"

Xl. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, the Company has neither paid nor provided for managerial remuneration

during the year.

Xll. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a

nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xlll. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and

188 of the Act and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as

required by the applicable accounting standards.

XlV. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement

of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

XVl.The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of lndia Act,

L934.

For JKVS & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 318086E

Ll{>eu S"*} '

(UtsavSaraf)

Partner
Membership No. 305932

U DIN: 21306932AAAABJ1026

Place: Kolkata
Date:10th lune,2o2!

.......contd.

fl Chartered
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDTTOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" section of

our Report to the members of Keshava Plantations Private Limitedof even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Keshava Plantations Private

Limited("the Company") as of 31st March 2O21, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements

of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ('lCAl'). These

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation

of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 201.3.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,

issued by lCAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial

Controls and, both issued by lCAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
flnancial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only

in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
.,{eh=
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reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company's assets that could have a materialeffect on the financialstatements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected" Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established

by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on

Audit of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by lCAl"

For JKVS & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No. 318085E

(J+5orS*d-"
(UtsavSaraf)

Partner

Membership No.306932

UDIN : 21306932AAAABJ1026

Place: Kolkata
Date:10th June, 2021

.......contd,
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KESHAVA PTANTATIONS PRIVATE TIMITED

CIN No. U01132AS1999pTC005666

BATANCE SHEET as at 31st March, 2021

( t in takhs)

L

a

b

C

d

e

NON.CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equlpment

Capital Work-ln-Progress

lntangible Assets

lntangible Assets under Development
Financial Assets

I Loans

Other Non Current Assets

Non-Current Tax Assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Blological Asset other than Bearer piants

n ve ntor i e!
Elnanciai Assets

Trade Receivables

ii Cash and Cash Equivalents
ill Loans

iv Other Ftnancial Assets

Otller Currclt Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND TIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity Share Capital
Othor Fquiiy

LIAB!LiTIES

I!ON.CUARENT LIABILITIES

l:if anciai Liabllities

i Borrowlngs

Provisions

Othcr lton Currerrt Liabilities
Defcrred I ax t.iairtritics (Net)

CURRENT LIABILITI[S

i:iil.il1(:ial I lnhi ltles

i Dorrow ngs

ll Trade Payables

Totai outstanding dues of creditors to
nricro enterprises and small enterprises
I otal outstanding dues of creditor to
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprise:

iii Other Flnancial Liabilities

Provisions

Other Currcnt Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

'uJlF4..!r
Utsav Saraf

(Partner)

Membe \ip No.306932

Kolkata

Dated: 10th June,2021

2,774,79

51.74

131.15

9.73

112.57 305.19

81,2.41,

10.95

49.81

18.74

25.12

15.62 993.25

2,475.66

170.57

2,646.23

80.00

1,262.85 1,342.85

5.44

1,27.49

150.89 283.82

833.49

68.09

52.01

23.92

42.05 1,019.56

2,646.23

2,38 1.10

49.41,

2.AA

1.50

26.23

2.86

4l.28

15.65

8.13

1.22

1".23

96.46

<_l*^A O*Jxd-1 --a
Sharad Bagree

Director

34^-t'

2,344.94

59.22

4.15

2.34

).6.23

1.10

11.51 2,456.09

f

2

a

b

C

a

b

7

8

9

10

11

L2

13

7

1.4

8

2.52

1,72.21

1.90

0.96

L.52

75.?.2 258.70

15

16
80.00

1,336.35 1,416.35

1

a

b

C

d

t7
22

23

18

2

;

b

C

19

20

21

22

23

Uasis of preparation and presentation of z
Signi{icant Accounting policics 3

Significant Judgements & Key Estinrates 4
I he Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per olr report of even date annexed.

tror and orr behalf of

JKVS&CO
Chartered Accountants

Flrm Registration No. 318086E

2,7!4.79

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

' , 
cno"t'od

I 
rjl.L r(tnl:ri-iS .*, Di rector



KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE [!MITED

CIN No. U01132AS1999pTC005666

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & IOSS for the year ended 31st March, 2021

For the year ende{
Note No. 31st March, 2021

( t in takhs)

For the year ended

31st March, 2020INCOME

Revenue from Operations
Other lncome

Total lncome

EXPENSES

Cost of Materials Consumed

Changes in lnventories of Finished Goods, Stock-ln-Trade and
Work-in-Progress

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
other ExPenses 

Totar Expenses

Profit before Exceptional ltems and Tax
Exceptional ltems
Profit before Tax

I ax hxpense:

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive lncome
Items that will not be reclassifieiJ to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans

lncome tax relating to these items

Other Comprehensive Income for the year (Net of Tax)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Earnings Per Share

Basis of preparation and presentation of Financial Statement

Significa nt Accounting Policies

Significant Judgements & Key Estimates

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed.

For and on behalf of
JKVS&CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No, 318086E

L{U.*l S4r.oxt-'
Utsav Saraf

(Partner)

Membership No.306932 I

Kolkata

Dated: L0th June,2021"

24

25

26

27

2

3

4

992..72

5.14
1,136.88

7.90
997.26 L,144.79

28

29

30

31

30.86

(11s.49)

569.00

93.81

98.48

264.79

223.47

37.84

553.11

89.97

107.94

290.44
941.45 L,3O2.77

55.81 (1s7.ss)

32

33

34

55.81

tEz.sol
88.77

(1s7.9e)

tzz.Eot
(130.5e)

(20.63)

5.36

(13.66)

3.55

lLs.27) (10.11)

73.50 (140.80)

110.96 (163.36)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

,","^M *xiwChartered
* Accountants *

Director Director
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KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021

Notes :

1 Cash artl cash equivalents coruists of cash on Hand ancl balances with banks h current / Cash Creclit accounts as per note 2.12
2 Previous vear's figures have been regrouped/rearrangecl wherever necessarv
3 Cash andcasli consists of:

Ihis is dre Cash Flow Statement referred to ir our report of even date.

(t in Lakhs )

For and on behalf of

JKVS&CO

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 318086E

L:'{ry"., \'&+
Utsav Saraf

( Pa rtn er)

I\4embership No. 306932

Kolkata

Dated:10th June,2021

For and on behalf of Board of oirectors

,","M ry,"wg

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020

Amount Anount Anount Anout
A)

B)

c)

IcASH 
FLOW FROM OpERATING ACTTVtTTES

llrofit alter Exceplional ItenE & belore Tax

lA.iiustnents for:
I

I Depreciation & Anortisation
Interest Income

Fair Valuatiorr for Biological Assets otlter tlran bearer plarrt
Finance Cost

Sunclrr. Credit bal. rro longer requirecl written back
Remeasurelnent of post -ernplolrlent clefined beneft obligation
I oss on Srle/ Disr a rLl of Propertr- , Pla r t a Lrcl Equ ipnrer rl
Bad Debts & Provision {or cloubtful clebts/ Ativances (Net)

Operatirg Profit before working capital changes
Atljustments for :

(hrcrease)/Decrease in Trade Receivables

(lrrt rease)/ Decrease il Inventories
(hrcrease)/Decrease in Loans, Other Financial Assets & C)ther Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Pal,ables & Ottrer Liabilitv
Increase/(Decrease) in Pror.ision

Caslt Generated fronr 90", n, n,,t
Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refrmcl received (Net)

Net Cash from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets including CWIp / Capital
Advances

Sale of ProPerty,Plant and EquiPment Assets

Interest Received

Net cash used in Investing Actir.ities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
lroc.,erls tlont Non Currerrt Borrowirrgs
Rep,rr nrerrts of Non Current Borrowilgs
(Reparrrents)/Proceeds from Short Term /Other Borrowings
Interest paicl

\et Cash from/(used in) Financirg Acti\.ities
\et Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Jash and Cash Equivalents - Opeuing Balance

Jash antl Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance

98.48

(1.76)

(2.s2)

93.81

(0.63)

(20.63)

9._67

55.81

176.42

707.94

(1 46)

89.97

(0.32)

(^t3.66)

4.33

0.4?

(^ts7. ee)

"187.27

17.34

(t24.ee)

2297
(7.*)
6.09

232.23

(e2.13)

39.55

(8e.30)

27.21

22.99

4)(6 1

29.23

(s.69)

(86.74)

1.35

7.76

140.10
(4.es)

(130.12'

L.46

13 98\

135.15 19.56

58.00

(1..76\

(21.08)

(e3.s1)

8.73

1.90

(83.631

7.99

(0.80)

186.01

(76.s4)

1_.^t7

8.73

(t28.66

51.52 (10e.10)

(s8.35) 1,1,6.66

(6.83 7.56

Cash on hancl

Bark Balance

Director Director

L..\

* Accounlants
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KESHAVA PLANTATIONSPRIVATE LI M ITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March, 2O2t

1. CORPORATH AND GENERAI, INFORMATION

Keshava Plantations Private Limited was incorporated as a Private Limited Company in lndia under the Companies Act
. 1956. lt is a wholly owned subsidiary of Joonktollee Tea & lndustries Limited. Since 2016, the Company has been under

the management of the Joonktollee Tea & lndustries Limited. The Company's principal business is manufacturing of Tea.

2. BASTS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT

2.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") as

prescribed by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 201.3 ("the Act"), read with the
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20L5 (as amended), other relevant provisions of the Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in lndia.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021 has been approved by the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on l0thJune, 2021.

2.2 Basis of Measurement

The Company maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, except for followings:

fi nancial instr:uments);

2.5

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements are presented in lndian Rupee (lNR), which is the functional currency of the Company and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. All financial information presented in INR

has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformitywith lnd AS requires judgements, estimates and assumptionsto be

made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between

the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/ materiaiized.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet and th'e Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the
Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as

per the requirements of lnd AS 7 "statement of Cash flows". The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the

Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Act, are presented by way of notes

forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified
Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended).

Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and

other criteria set out in the Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 and lnd AS L. The Company has ascertained its

operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

2.3

2.4

2.6

after the reporting period.



KESHAVA PLANTATIONSPRIVATE LI M ITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March, 202L ,

All the other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities respectively.

Measurement of Fair Values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

either directly or indirectly; and

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilities. lnvolvement of external valuers is decided by
the management of the company considering the requirements of lnd AS and selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement- Standard issued but not yet effective

Ministry of corporate affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such
notification which would have been applicable from April 0\,202L.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT!NG POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies apptied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below.
These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

INVENTORIES

lnventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cost is measured by including, unless

specifically mentioned below, cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition. NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Raw Materials: At Cost or Net Realizable Value whichever is lower. Cost of harvested tea leaves, produced from own
gardens, is measured at fair value less cost to sell at the point of harvest of tea leaves. Cost of other raw materials is

measured on weighted average basis.

2.7

3.1

\.}5
4r

Charfered
* A^^^,,^r^-.^ *



KESHAVA PLANTATIONSPRIVATE LI M ITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021,

realizable value whichever is lower.

conversion cost.

realizable value. Cost is arrived at by adding the cost of conversion to the fair value of agricultural produce. Other
finished goods are measured at cost or NRV whichever is lower.

F Waste/ Scrap: Waste and Scrap (including tea waste) are valued at estimated realizable value.

3.2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVATENTS

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise'cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, term deposits and other
short-term highly liquid investments, net of bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash
management. Bank overdrafts are shown within short term borrowings in the balance sheet.

3.3 INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit & loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. ln this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

3.3.1 Current Tax:

Current tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
(recovered from) the taxation authorities using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted, at the end ofthe reporting period.

3.3.2 Deferred Tax

asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end ofthe reporting period.

for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e., tax base). Deferred
tax is also recognized for carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow the benefit of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlatisn to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.



KESHAVA PLANTATIONSPRIVATE LI M ITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3L,t March, ZlZL,

3.4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

3.4.1 iangibte Assets (Othgr than Bearer Pla{rts)

3.4.t.1 Recognition and Measurement:

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/and supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any).

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment acquired comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of
bringing the assets to its working condition and location for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

ln case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour,
allocation of directly attributable overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located. The costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing the asset to that location and condition are also added to the
cost of self-constructed assets.

lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Profit or loss arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3,4,L.2 SubsequentMeasurement:

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.

Major lnspection/ Repairs/ Overhauling expenses are recognized in the carrying amount of the item of property,
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any Unamortized part of the
previously recognized expenses of similar nature is derecognized.

3.4.1.3 Depreciation and Amortization:

Depreciation on Progerty, Plant & Equipment is provided under Written Down Method at rates determined based
on the useful life of the respective assets and the residual values in accordance with Schedule ll of the Companies
Act, 2013 or as reassessed by the Company based on the technical evaluation.

ln case of asset "Fences, wells, tube wells" & "Carpeted Roads - Other than RCC", depreciation has been provided
on written down value method at the rates determined considering the useful lives of 15 years which is based on
assessment carried out by external valuers and the management believes that the useful lives as considered above
best represent the per:iod over which the respective assets shall be expected in use.

ln respect of spares for specific machinery, cost is amortized over the useful life of the related machinery as

estimated by the management.

ln case of asset "Pruning Machine" and "spraying Machine", depreciation has been provided on written down value
method at the rates determined considering the useful lives of 3 years.

Depreciation on additions (disposals) during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e., from (up to) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

appropriate.

3.4.1.4 Disposal of Assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of

operty, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.



KESHAVA PLANTATIONSPRIVATE LI MITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March, 2021,

3.4.1.5 Capital Work in Prosress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction period, interest on
amount borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred in connection with project
implementation in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial production.

3.4.2 Bearer Plants

3.4.2.t Recognition and Measu-rement:

F Bearer Plants, comprising of mature tea bushes and shade trees are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

F Cost of bearer plants in'cludes the cost of uprooting, land development, rehabilitation, planting of Guatemala, planting

. of shade trees, cost of nursery, drainage, manual cultivation, fertilizers, agro-chemicals, pruning and infilling etc.

3,4.2.2 Depreciation:

method.

been determined as the following:

Tea Bushes I SO years

3.4.2.3 Capital Work in Progress

Young tea bushes & shade trees, including the cost incurred for procurement of new seeds and maintenance of nurseries,
are carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses under capital work-in-progress. Cost includes the cost of land
preparation, new planting and maintenance of newly planted bushes until maturity. On maturity, these costs are
classified under bearer plants. Depreciation of bearer plants commence on maturity.

3.5 I-EASES

. TheCompanyassessesatcontractinceptionwhetheracontractis,orcontains,alease.Thatis,ifthecontractconveysthe
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

3.5.1 Companv as lessor

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item ar:e classified and accounted for as finance lease. Lease rental receipts are apportioned between the
finance income and capital repayment based on the implicit rate of return. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight line basis
over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance
sheet based on their nature.

3.5,2 Companv as lessee

Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease
payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease Payments under such leases are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return.
Finance charges are charged directly to the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and
other initial direct costs are capitalized.

lf there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of lease term, capitalized
leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

ffiN
/>F" t r tb\
$ n,- -.F , \\



KESHAVA PLANTATIONSPRIVATE LI M ITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 202L,

Operatine Lease

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the arnount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

lf ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated usingthe estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use
assets are also subject to impairment.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments Include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. ln calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. ln addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is
a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of properties, machinery
and equipment (i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchabe option). lt also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenue is recognized based to the extent it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and
revenue can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment, and excludes
taxes & duties collected on behalf of the Government and is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other
similar allowances.

3.6.1 Sale of Products:

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been transferred to the customer. The
performance obligation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the
customer or on delivery to the customer, as may be specified in the contract.

ii)

iii)



. KESHAVA PLANTATTONSPRIVATE TIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31,1 March, 202L,

3.6.2 Rental lncome

Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the company's expected
inflationary cost increases.

3.6.3 Other lncome:

lnterest lncome: For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FWOCI), interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend lncome: Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is established.

Other lncome: Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is

. probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

3.7 EMPTOYEE BENEFITS

3.7.t Short Term Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related
services are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period.

3.7.2 Other Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for leaves that are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months are measured as the present
value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-
Sec) at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obtigation.
Remeasurements as the result of experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in
statement of profit and loss.

3.7.3. Post Emplovment Benefits

The Company operates the following post employment schemes:

) Oefined Contribution plan

Defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund, Employee State lnsurance etc. are charged to the statement of
profit and loss as and when incurred.

D Oefined Benefit Plans

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company's net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligation is calcutated
annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The liability recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past
service costs. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair Value of plan assets. The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-Sec) at the
end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling, are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not

Lp>

be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March, 202L,

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value, where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

The grant relating to the acquisition/ construction of an item.of property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on the same systematic basis as the respective
assets are depreciated over their expected life and are presented within other operating income.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

the spot rates of exchanges at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchanges at the reporting date.

monetary assets and liabilities are generally recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except for
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those qualifying assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
costs on those foreign currency borrowings, the balance is presented in the Statement of profit and Loss within
finance costs.

exchange rate at the transaction date).

3.10 BORROWTNG COSTS

funds. Borrowing costs also includes foreign exchange difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

of the cost of that asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale.

Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

3.11 FINANCIATINSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

3.11.1 FinancialAssets

All financial assets are initially recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through proflt or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

o Measured at Amortized Cost;
o Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVTOCI);

o Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and
o Equity lnstruments designated at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVTOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

V

3.8
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Measured al Amortized Cost; A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost.if both the following
conditions are met:

' The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows; and

' The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (Sppl) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (ElR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.
This category generally applies to trade receivables, cash and bank balances, loans and other financial assets of
the company.

Measured at FVTOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVTOCI if both the following conditions are met:

' The objective of the business model is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets; and

r The asset's cbntractual cash flows represent Sppl.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. lnterest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in investment
income.

Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FWOCI, is classified as FWpL. ln addition, the
company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as
at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FWPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as at
FVTPL.

Equitv lnstruments desienqted at FWOCI; For equity instruments, which has not been classified as FVTpL as
above, the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent
changes in the fair value. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. ln case the company decides to classifli an equity
instrument as at FWOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the
OCl. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&1, even on sale of investment.

Derecognition:

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

lmpairment of Financial Assets:

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. lnd AS - 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The company
recognizes impairment loss for trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction using expected
credit loss model, which involves use of a provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss
experience. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12
month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on
the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

3.LL.2 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables or as derivatives, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair
of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

in the case



KESHAVA PTANTATIONSPRIVATE LI MITED
Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 3l't March, 2021,

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as FWpL if
it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized
in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method. lnterest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

A financial liability is d,erecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

3.11.3 . Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy ofthe counterparty.

3.L2 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
bythe weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by
dividing the profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effects of potential equity shares by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that
would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

3.13 lmpairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is
treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of value in use and net

. selling price' Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the balance useful lives of the
assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (Cash
Generating Units - CGU).

An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is
identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in earlier accounting period is reversed if there has been an
improvement in recoverable amount.

3.L4 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

3.t4.L Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The, unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

3.14.2 . Contingent Liabitities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company
or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not possible that an outflow cif
resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligations cannot be made. The Company discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in Other Notes to Financial
Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

3.L4.3 ContingentAssets

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of
economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

3.15 Non-Current Assets hetd for sate

Non-current assets and disposal Sroups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised.

3.16 lntangible Assets

3.16.1 RecognitionandMeasurement

Software which is not an integral part of related hardware, is treated as intangible asset and are stated at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently measured atcost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

3.L6.2 Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits' associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
expenditure is recognized in the Statement of profit & Loss.

3.16.3 Amortization

expected useful life of the assets is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is
changed accordingly.

3.16.4 lntangible Assets under Development

lntangible Assets under development is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred in connection with development
of lntangible Assets in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the getting the assets ready for use.

3.L7 Biological Assets and Agricultural produce

3.t7.L Biological Assets

Biological assets of the coinpany comprise of un-harvested green tea leaves and other minor produce are measured at
. fair value less cost of sales. The gain or loss arising from a change in fair value less cost to sell of biological assets is

included in Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which it arises.

3.L7.2 Agricultural Produce

Agricultural produce harvested from the Company's biological assets are valued at fair value less cost to sell at the point
of harvest. A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less cost to sell shall be included
in Statement of Profit & Loss for the period in which it arises.

3.18 Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

The Company has identified single reporting segment i.e. tea,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31.t March, 2021,

SIGNTFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION !N APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. lnformation about Significant judgements and Key sources of estimation made in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is
included in the following notes:

Recognition of Deferred Tgx Assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxabte income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilized. ln addition, significant judgement is required in assessingthe impact of any legal or economic limits.

Useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets (tangiblg a.nd intangibtel: Management reviews its estimate of the
useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to actual normal wear and tear that may change the utility of plant and equipment.

Classificatiofr of Leases: The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the
leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but
not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estimated
certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset's economic life, proportion of present value of
minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

Defined B"enefit Oblieation (DBO): Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions
which include mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in discount rates,
medical cost trends, anticipation of future salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the
assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a
material impact on the resulting calculations.

Provisions and Contingencies: The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been
made in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) 37, 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets'. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events is applied best judgement by management regarding
the probability of exposure to potential loss.

lmpairment of Financial Assets: The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortized cost
annually, or more frequently when there is indication of impairment. lf recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Allowances for.Doubtfut Debts: The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts through appropriate estimations of
irrecoverable amount. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of judgment and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other
receivables and doubtful debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value measurement of financial lnstruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The input to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Fair Value of BioloEica,l Assets and Asricuttural Produce: The fair value of Biological Assets and Agricultural Produce is
determined based on recent transactions entered into with third parties or available market price. Fair valuation of
Biological Asset and Agriculture Produce are based on the market rates published by the industrial body for various
grades from which the fair value of Biological asset and Agriculture Produce are derived.

Uncgrtainties relatine to,the slobpl health pandemic from COVID-19:

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the
carrying amounts of receivables, projects work- in -progress and inventories including biological assets. ln developing
the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this
pandemic, the Company, as at the date ofapproval ofthesefinancial statements has used internal and external sources
of information including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed
sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these
assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial s.Lalg{ngnts may differ from that estimated
as at the date of approval of these financial statements. ,fi]i-; ,il'i\
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KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CtN No. U01132AS1999pTC005666

Notes to Financia, Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

( I in takhs)
Non Current Current

As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020 31st March 2021 31st March 2O2O

26.23 26.23

LOANS

Security Deposit

Secured, considered good

Other Loans and Advanaes, unsecured, considered good unless
otheeise mentioned

Loan / Advance to Employees

Less : Provision for Doubtful Advances

Total Loans

26.23

3.88 1.22

2 '92

26.23 0.96
7.7

director or a member.

Non Current

As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

OTHER ASSETS

Advances other than Capital Advan.es
Advances to Suppliers & Seruice Providers
Balances with Government & Statutory Authorities
Prepaid Expenses

lncentive & Subsidy Receivable

Total Other Current Assets

NON CURRENTTAX ASSETS (NET)

Advance lncome Tax & TDS

Biological Asset other than Eearer plant

Biological Asset other than Bearer Plant

Ar at

As at
31st March 2021

INVENTORIES

(As valued and certified by the Management)

Finished Goods

Stores and Spares (net of obsolesce) 4

11.1 Refer note no. 36 for information on inventories pledged as securities by the Company

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables

Le3s: Loss Allowance
Total Trade Reaeivables

Break Up ofSecurity Details

Trade Receivables considered good-secured

Trade Receivables considered good-Unsecured

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade Receivables- credit impaired
Total
Loss Allowance

Total Trade Receivables

13 CASH AND CASH EQUVAI"ENTS

Balances With Banks :

ln Current Account

Cash in Hand

As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Asat Asat
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

o.14

0.36

1.10 2.a5 75.22 96.46

As at
31st March 2020

As at
March 2020

50.92

10.39

4.18

9.73

14.57

18.74

3.21.

137.14

4,3L 15.65

4.31

4.31

4.3!

4.31

As at As at
31st Marah 2021 31st March 2020

o.24

1.66

7.52
.t.21

8.731.90

As at
31st March 2020

14 JTHERS FINANCIAI- ASSETS

Deposit with Nabard

Others Receivable
0.57

0.95

0.57

0.66

7.52

2.52

15.65

VP

Accouniants



KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No. U01132AS1999PTC005666

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for theyear end€d 31st March,2021

( { in takhs)

31st March 2021
No- ofShares Amgunt

31st March 2020
No. ofshares Amount15 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

15,1 Authorised Share Capital

Eouitv Shares:

Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each 1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00

1,00,000.00 1,00,000.00

80,000.00 80,000.00
80,000.00 80,000.00

80,000.00

15.4 Reconciliationofthenumberofsharesatthebeginningandattheendoftheyear

There has been no change/ movements in number of shares outstanding at the beginninc and at the end of the vear.

15.5 Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares :

15.5 Shareholding Pattern with respect of Holding or Ultimate Holding Company

Entire shareholding of the company is held by M/s- loonktollee Tea & tndustries Limited (Holding company)

15.7 oetails oJ Equity Sha.eholders holding more than S% shares in the Company

31st Mar.h 2021 31st March 2020
No. ofsha.es %Holdins. No. ofShares Yo Holdin?

Equity Shares of' 10/- each fully paid

loonktollee Tea & lndustries Limited and its nominees 80,OOO

15 8 No Equity shares have been reserued for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment as at the Balance sheet date.

15.9 No Equity shares have been bought back by the company during the perjod of 5 years preceding the date as at which the Balance sheet is prepared.

15.10 No securities convertible into Equity/ Preference shares have been issued by the company durinc the vear.

15.:1 No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.

lssued Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 100/, each

Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 100/ each fully paid up

16 OTHER EQUITY

Capital ReseNe

Retained Earnings

a)

16.1 Capital Reserve

Balance atthe beginning and atthe end ofthe year

16.2 Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Addr Other Comprehensive lncome arising from remeasurement of
defined benefit obligation (net of tax)
Add: Profit/(Loss) fo. the year

Balance at the end of the year

Other Equity

Refer Note

No.

16.1

76,2

As ai
20zo

5.00

1,331.35

5.00

1.85

1,335.35

b) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings represent accumulated profits earned by the Company and remaining undistributed as on date.

As at

1,262.a5

7,257.45

lls.27J
88.77

1,398,65

( 10.1 1)

{130.6s)

Non-Current Current Maturities
Ar at

31st March 2021
As at As at

315t March 2020202r
BORROWINGS

secured

Working Capttal Term Loan from Banks

Term Loan from other tinancial lnstitution
48.33

3.41 5.44
9.67

51.?4 5.44 11.?0 1,76
17'1WorkingcapitalTermLoan(GECL)fromaBankamountingtoR5.58lecswithoneyearmoratoriomtogetherwith*o.kingcapit"l

Tea Estate . The Loan is repayable in 32 monthly instalments of Rs.1.61 lacs, interest is payable monthly @ 8.95% p.a

17.2 V;hicle Loan from Financial lnstitution payable in remaining 29 instalments of Rs.O.22 lacs including interest @ 7.60% p.a

5.00 5-OO

s ea
,: 
.:.- b> u \
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KESHAVA PTANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No. U01132AS1999PTCoOs666

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, ZO21

( I in Lakhsl

- Asat
31st March 2021

DEEERRED TAX LIABII-ITIES (NET)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Arising on account of:
Property, Plant & Equipments & lntangible Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Arising on account of:
'Section 438 of lncome{ax Act
Unabsorbed Depreciation/ Carried Forward Eusiness Losses

Others

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

185.32

17.24

35.27

30

is viftualiy certain.

Movement in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilitier durins thF vFir pndpd ri<i Mrr.h ,nr1

padicurars 
,",o1;;:"r" ,,",1i,""'"',"1#ll,,n .ffifl:',:1J:;':I. ,*,*i.1,1r0,

Oeferred lncome Tax Liabilities

Property, Plant & Equipments & lntangible Assets

Deferred lncome Tax Assets

Items u/s 438 of the lncome Tax Act, 1961

Unabsorbed Depreciation/ Carried Forward Business Losses

Others

(33.73)

1st April, 2019 statement oJ Profit & comprehensive lncome ,r* ,"ri, ,oro

33.15

35.01

18.1

L8.2

33.15

35.01

(7.27)

0.20

0.30

5.36 37.24

35.2L

0.30

72.7s

18.2 Movemert in deferred tax asseq and defered tax liabilities during the year ended 31st March, 2020

Recogniz€d in Recognired in Oth€r

Deferred lncome Tax Liabilities

Property, Plant & Equipments & lntangible Assets 233.52 l'1.4.47) 219.05

33.15

35.01

57.77

deferred tax laibilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority.

As at As at
19 CURRENT BORROWINGS

Secured

Working Capital loans repayable on demand
From Federal Eank Limited

Short Term Loan from Body Corporates repayable on demand

31st March

812.47

19.1

Details of Security Given for Loan

The same carries interest @ 8.70% p.a.

SecuredbysecondchargebywayofmortgageofAzizbaghTeaEstate alongwithstandingteacrop,buildingsandplantandmachjnery.Thesamecarriesinterest@12%p.a.

Refer note no. 35 for information on the carrying amounts of financial and non financial assets pledged as security for current borrowings.

Deferred lncome Tax Assets

Items u/s 438 of the lncome Tax Act, 1961

Unabsorbed Depreciation/ Carried Forward Busjness losses

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade Payables for goods and servjces
Total ouistanding dues of creditors to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditor to other than micro enterprises and small enterprlses

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Employee Related Liability

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings
Amount Payable for Capital ltems

lnterest Accrued but not due on Borrowings
lnterest Accrued and due on Borrowings
Others

28.83

22.94

0.71

12.O1

3.55

19.1

19.2
372.41

500.00

333.49

500.00

19,2

19.3

As at
31st March 2021

10.95

49.81

60,76

As at
March 2020

31.15 20.07

1.7.70 1.76

17.54 12.78

0.04

13.69 13.43

4.6L 4.57

Non Current

As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

22 PROVISTONS

Provision for Employee Benefits

Gratuity

Bonus
131.15

25.72 23.92

219.05 18s.32

2L
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KESHAVA PTANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No. U0U32AS1999PTC0056GE
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for theyear ended 3tst Mar€h,2021

( I in Lakhs)

Non Current

As at As at As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2020 31st March 2021 31st March 2O2O

OTHER LIABITITIES

Statutory Dues Payable

Deferred Government Subsidy

Advances Received from Customers

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Finished Goods-Tea

Other Operating Revenues
lnsurance and Other Claims (Net)

OTHER INCOME

lhterest lnaome at amortised cost
' On Deposits

Other Non Operating lncome

Excess Liabilities and Unclaimed Balances written back

Miscellaneous ln.omF

Changes in Fair value of Biological assets

9.73
15.62 12.97

29.08

9.73 - 15.62

For the year ended tor theyear
202L 31st Mar.h 2020

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

1.46

0.32

6.t2

5.74 7.90

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

For theyear ended fortheyear ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

731.14

137.14

For the year ended Fortheyear
31st March 2021 31st Mar.h 2020

0.63

0.23

2.s2

26 COST OF MATERIAI-S CONSUMED

Purchase of Green Leaf

CHANGESIN INVENTORIESOFFINISHEDGOODS,STOCX.IN.TRADEANDWORK-IN-PROGRESS

lnventoriesat the end oftheyear
Tea

lnventories at the beginning ofthe year

Tea

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries & Wages

Contribution to Provident Funds and Others
Contribution to Gratuity Fund

Staff Welfare Expenses

Less: Amount Cepltalised

463.4A

52.08

17.33

447.83

53.53

16.46

575.18 562.66

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2021 31st March 2020
FINANCE COST

lnterest Expenses

To Banks On Working Capital Loans

On Corporate Loans & Others

To Holding Company

Other Borrowing Costs

Other Financial Charges

Less: Amount Capitalised

31.06

60.00

3.50

30.10

45.59

11.00

29.70

94.56 90.82

0.85

(31st March, 2020 - 10.44%).

1.76

(115,4r) 3?S4

6.18

569.00



KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No. U01132AS1999pTC005666
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2021 ,

( t in Lakhs)

Forthe year ended Foi the year ended
31st March 2021 31st March 2O2O

OEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

On Property, Plant and Equipment
On lntangible Assets

OTHER EXPENSES

Manufacturing Expenses

Stores, Spare Parts & Packing Materials Consumed
Power & Fuei

Cultivations
' Repairs to Buildings

Repairs to Machinery

Repairs to Other Assets

Less: Amount Capitalised

Selling and Administration Expenses

Freight & Cartage

Commission, Brokerage & Discount
Rates & Taxes

Rent

Vehicle Running & Majntenance Expense

Auditors' Remuneration -

Audit Fees

Reimbursement of Expenses

Loss on sale/Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment
Changes in Fair value of Biological assets

Bad Debt /Advances written off
Travelling Expenses

Director Sitting Fees

Provision for Doubtful Advances
Other Miscellaneous Expenses

105.94

2.00

707.94

For the year ended For the year ended

31st March 2020

71.79 19.04

71.05 94.69
84.90 "t3.69

15.35 18.28

17.07 13.80

196.47 220.72

4.49

13.74

2.O8

4.18

1.50

3.79

19.85

1.50

9.67

0.60

2.92

15.51

9.22

5.69

1.50

1.59

2.21

17.45

1.50

0.07

4.33

6.44

0.42

o.75

o.70

22.14

TAX EXPENSE

Current Tax

Deferred lax

For the yeat ended For theyear ended
31st March 2021 31st March

31st March 2021 .31st March 2020
(1s7.99)

321 ReconciliationofestimatedlncometaxexpenseatstatutorylncometaxratetoincometaxexpensereportedinstatementofTotalcomprehensivelncome

Profit before income tax expense

Statutory lncome Tax rate*
Estimated lncome Tax Expense

Ta\ elfect of ddjustments to reconcjle expected lncome tax expense to
'eporlcd lncome to\ expensc
Due to Deferred tax on business losses not considered
Deferred Tax on tax holiday peraod reversed
Exempt lncome

Others

lncome tax expense in Statement of profit & t-oss

+ Applicable Statutory lncome Tax rate for Fis cal y eat ZO2t is 26% & 2O2O is 26%.

33 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement ofthe defined benefit plans

Less: Tax expense on the above

34 €arning per Shares

Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.)

Profit attributed to the Equity shareholders ofthe Company
Weighted average number of equity shares

Jasis and diluted earning per shares (Rs.)

There are no dil!tive equity shares in the Company.

55.81

o.26

14.51

4.81

19.49

13.19

(41.08)

(16.3e)

2.61

(27.30)

For the year ended Fo, the year ended
31st March 2020

(13.66)

100.00

88.77

100,00

{130.6e)

-.,.'. 1:j1^._

,r:ds l.:,-:;1-
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0.26

9.98

47.47



KESHAVA PTANTATIONS PRIVATE TIM ED

CIN No. U0U32AS1999pTC005666
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets & Commitment

The Company does not have any Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets.

Commitments

( t in Lakhs)

Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current & non-current borrowings are as follows:

Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises development act, 2006, to the extent ascertained, and as per notification number GSR 679 (El dated
4th September, 2015

Disclosure pursuant to lndian Accounting Standard - 19'Employee Benefits,

Defined Contribution Plan:

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement plan for qualifying employees. The Provident fund plan is operated by statutory
authorities. Under the said scheme the company is required to contribute a specific percentage of pay roll costs in respect of eligible employees to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits.

The amount recognized as an expense for the Defined Contribution plans are as under:

35.1

36

38

38.1

;1. No. Particulars As at

31"t March 2021

As at

31"t March 2o2o

t.
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (net of
advances) 74.86

Particulars Refer Note No.
As at As at

31st March 2021 31st March 2O2O
Current

Financial assets

FirstandSecond charge
Trade Receivables

Non-financial assets

FirstandSecond charge
lnventories

Total current assets pledged as security

Non-curtent

FirstandSecond charge
Property, Plant & Equipments

Total non{urrents assets pledged as security

Total assets pledged as security

11

5

4.31 15.65

4.37 15.65

t72.27 47.24

!72.27 47.28

176.58 62.93

2,404.16 2,432.0t

2,404.16 2,432.0'

2,580.74 2,494.94

51. No. Particulars As at
31st March 2021

As at
31st March 2O2O

I fhe principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each financjal
/ear. 10.95

I Ihe amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 ofthe Micro, small and Medium Enterprises
)evelopment Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
Juring each accounting year.

lu rhe amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment but without adding the
nterest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

fhe amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

tl. No. Particulars
For the year ended

3lst March 2021

For the year ended

3lst March 2020

a )rovident Fund 52.08 53.53

* Acccuntants *,



Defined Benefit Plan:

The following are the types of defined benefit plans

Gratuity Plan

The Company makes annual contribution of gratuity to gratuity funds duly constituted and administered by independent trustees and funded with Life lnsurance Corporation of
lndia/ independent trust for the qualifying employees. The scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees upon retirement, death while in employment or on
termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of 5 years of continuous
service.

The present value of defined obli8ation and related current cost are measured using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuation being carried out at each balance
sheet date.

Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ tiability ( t in takhs)

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit {asset)/ liability and its components:

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligations
The following table shows a reconciliation to defined benefits obligations:

38.2.5 Reconciliation of the Plan Assets

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the plan Assets and its components:

38.2.6 Expenses recognized in profit or loss

38.2.7 Remeasuremets recognzied in other comprehensive income

Major Categories of Plan Assets

The Gratuity Scheme is invested in a 610up Unit Linked Gratuity Plan managed by Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia and the lndependent Administered Gratuity Fund. The
information on the allocations of fund managed by Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia into major assets classes and expected return on each major classes are not readily
-r,-il^lr^ TL^ ^--^-+^f --.^ ^, -^...-- .,r.r:-_*'iii5available. The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the assumed rate of return provided by Company's actuary. 

, ir{:.j|dTi\O
// ';- t'. A'

fl 'r' t^> i.J
l! nt' i t ,

3A.2

34.2.2

38.2.3

38.2.4

nterest rate risk The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. lf bond yields fall, the definec
benefit obligation with tend to increase.

ialary lnflation risk Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,
disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward anc
depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. lt is important not to overstate
withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year
as compare to long service employee.

Particulars Gratuity
2020-zL 2019-20

Net defined benefit asset/(liability) at the beginning of the year
Service Cost

Net interest on net defined benefit (liability)/asset

Amount recognised in OCI

Employer contributions
Net defined benelit asset/(liability) at the end of the year

(127.49"

(e.s4l

(7.3e1

(20.63)

34.3C

l'111 I 5l

(110.87)

(8.6s)

(7.87]-

(13.66)

,.3.50

.127.491

Particulars Gratuity
2020-2L 2019-20

Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year
Current Service Cost

Lnterest Cost on the defined benefit obligation
Curtailment (Credit)/ Cost

Settlement (Credit)/ Cost

Past Service cost- plan amendments
Acquisitions (Credit)/ Cost

Actuarial (gain)/loss-experience

Actuarial (gain)/ loss -demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gain)/loss-financial assumptions
Benefits paid directly by the Company

Benefits paid from plan assets

Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year

132.39

9.94

8:s4

27'..60

1.58

ts.grt
764 14

113.33

8,65

8.11

:.oo

9.73

(10.43)

1_32.39

Particulars GratuiW

2020-2L 20t9-20
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year

lnterest lncome on Plan Assets

Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate
Employer Contributions

Benefits Paid

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

4.9C

1.15

,q(

34.3C

(s.s1l

32.99

2.46

0.3

-0.93

13.50

(10.43)

4.90

Particulars Gratuity
2020-2t 2019-20

Current Service Cost

lnterest Cost

lnterest lncome on Plan Assets
8.54

11.151

8.65

8.11

l0 10

L 76.46

Particulars Gratuity
2020-2r 2019-20

\ctuarial (gain)/ Loss on defined benefit obligation
leturn on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate

23.18

(2.ss)
L2.73

0.93

20.63 13.66



Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars Gratuity
2020aL 2019-20

Financial Assumptions

Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

Demographic Assumptions

Mortality Rate

Withdrawal Rate

6.60

6.00

lndian Assured Lives

Mortality i2005-08)
ult

Age from 20-40:2.00%
Age from 40-60: 1.00%

6.70

6.00

lndian Assured Lives

Mortality (2006-08)

ult

Age lrcm 20-40 : 2.00%
Age from 40-60: 1,00%

in the employment market.

the maturity analysis of the benefit payments is as follows:

tn

2020-21 2019-20
Expected benefits payment for the year ending on Gratuity Gratuitv
Within l year

1,-2Year

2-3 Year

3-4 Year

4-5 Year

5-9 Years

3.00

13.40

6.37

29.89

15.77

79.96

2..40

2.77

17.69

7.42

27.40

67.99

38.2.10

34.2.!2

38.2.13

The company expects to contribute { NIL (previous year { 34.30 lacs) to its gratuity fund in 2021-rt
Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period. Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Particulars Gratuity
2020-2L 2019-20

:ffect on DBO due to 1% increase in Discount Rate
:ffect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Discount Rate

:ffect on DBO due to 1% increase in Salary Escalation Rate
:ffect on DBO due to L% decrease in Salary Escalation Rate

'14.77].
77.40

17.34

(14.e8)

(11.s8j

t4.o1

t4.o3
(L2.L7)

shown.

39 Related Party Disclosures

39.1 Name of the related parties and description of relationship

Holding Company

- loonktollee Tea & lndustries Limited (Holding Company)
- The Cochin Malabar Estates And lndustries Limited (Associate of Holding Company)
- Pranav lnfradev Co.Pvt.Limited {Fellow Subsidiary Company)

39.2 Summary of transactions with the related parties

Particulars Holding Company Associate of Holding Company

31.O3.2021 31.03.2020 3,-.o3.202L 8L.03.2020
Loan Taken 120.00

Loan refunded 450.00

Advance (given)/taken (7s.0ol {7s.00) (28.00) 28.00

lnterest Expense 11.00

Sale of Tea t.43 5.40

;ale of Plant/Manure 1.58 7.74

)urchase of Manure/PPE 8.62

)urchase of Green Leaf 30.69 233.47

;ervice Charges Expense includine GST 26.95 22.98

\,t F'
-<,
f,liri -i: 1 -
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39.3 Summary of Closing Balance Outstanding with the related parties

39.4 Maior terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are carried out in the normal course of business and are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

Segment Reporting

maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. Based on the management approach as defined in lnd AS LO8, the Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance based
on only one segment i.e. manufacturing Tea.

Fair Value M€asurement

Categories of Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities as at 31st March 2021 and 31st March 2O2O

42 Fair Values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at Amotised Cost

42.1 The following is the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the company's financial instruments that are measured at amortized cost:

Particulars
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Carrying Amounl Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Loans to Employees

Security Deposits

Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Libilities

Total Financial Liabilities

4.31

1.90

0.96

26.23

7.52

4.31

1.90

0.96

26.23

r.52

15.65

1,.22

26.23

r.23

15.65

4.73

7.22

26.23

7.23

34.92 34.92 53.06 53.06

864.15

49.81

7R 7L

864.15

49.81

78.74

838.93

68.09

52.O7

838.93

68.09

52.07

992.70 992.70 959.03 959.03

42.2 The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowings, and other financial liabilities
approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

42.3 The management considers that the carrying amounts of Financial assets and Financial liabilities recognised at nominal cost/amortised cost in the Financial statements
approximate their fair values.

approximates their carrying value subject to adjustments made for transactjon cost.

43 Fair Value Hierarchy

43;1 Biological assets other than bearer plants

This section explajns the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the biological assets other than bearer plants that are recognised and measured at
falr value in the financial statements. The Company uses a Valuation technique that is appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
the fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs.

Eiological Assets measured at Fair Value less cost to sell

As at 31st March 2021 and 31st March 2020

Particulars 31st March 2021 31st March 2020

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 l-evel 1 Level 2 Level 3

Non Financial Assets

Biological Assets other than Bearer Plant

- Unharvested Tea Leaf

Total Non Financial Asset:

2.s2

2.52

4r

Particulars
31st March 2021 31st March 2020

FVTPT FVOCI
Amortized

Cost
FVTPL FVOCI

Amortized

Cost

Financial Assets

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Loans to Employees

Security Deposits

Other Financial Assets

Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Libilities

Total Financial Liabilities

4.31

1.90

0.96

26.23

1,.52

1s.65

8.73

L.22

26.23

7.23

34.92 s3.06

864.15

49.87

7A.74

838.93

68.09

52.01

992.70 959.03

wb



43.2 During the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 there are no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3.

43.2.1 ValuationTechnique

Unharvested Tea Leaf: Fair value is being arrived at based on the observable market prices of made tea ad.iusted for manufacturing costs. The same is applied on quantity of the
tea leaves unharvested using plucking averages of various estates.

43.3 Explanation to the fair value hierarchy

The Company measures Financial instruments, such as, equity investments and non financial instruments, such as, unharvested tea leaf and timber plantation, at fair value at
each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orcierly transaction between market participants at the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. The valuation of equity instruments are based on level 3 inputs and valuation of unharvested tea
leaf and timber plantation are based on level 2 inputs as per the hierarchy mentioned in the Accounting policies.

Financial Risk Management

Financial management of the Company has been receiving attention of the top management of the Company. The management considers finance as the lifeline of the business
and therefore, financial management.is carried out meticulously on the basis of detailed management information systems and reports at periodical intervals extending from
daily reports to long-term plans. lmportance is laid on liquidity and working capital management with a view to reduce over-dependence on borrowings and reduction in
interest cost. Various kinds of financial risks and their mitigation plans are as follows:

credit Risk

exposure is undertaken only with large reputed business houses and with no history of default against payments. The Company has used a practical expedience by computing
the expected credit losses matrix which has taken into account historical credit loss experience based on which no expected credit loss risk has been estimated.

Liquidity Risk

The Company determines its liquidity requirement in the short, medium and long term. This is done by drawings up cash forecast for short term and long term needs.

The company manage its liquidity risk in a manner so as to meet its normal financial obligations without any significant delay or stress. such risk is managed through ensuring
operational cash flow while at the same time maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalent position. The management has arranged for diversified funding sources and

reviewed at regular basis.

44.2.1 Maturity Analysis for financial liabilities

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31st March 2O2L

b The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31st March 2O2O

The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements (if any). The interest payments on variable
interest rate loans in the tables above reflect market forward interest rates at the respective reporting dates and these amounts may change as market interest rates change,

When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined with reference to €onditions existing at the reporting date.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Company's business primarily
agricultural in nature, exposes it to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of adverse weather conditions and lack of
future markets. The Company closely monitors the changes in market conditions and select the sales strategies to mitigate its exposure to risk.Market risk comprises two type
of risks: lnterest Rate Risk and Commodity Risk.

44.3

Particulars
On Demand

Less than 5

months
6 months to 1

1 years to 5 years More than 5 years Total

Borrowings

Term Loan from Bank 9.6-, 58.00
Term Loan from other financial institution 0.9t 1.0: 3.41 5.44
Working Capital loans repayable on demand 812.4 8!2.41

Irade payables 49.81 49.81
Cther financial liabilities 37.23 35.8 67.04

Total 843.64 86.5C 70.72 5L.74 992.70

Particulars On Demand
Less than 6

months

6 months to 1
1 years to 5 years More than 5 years Total

3orrowings

Term Loan from other financial institution 0.85 0.91 5.44 7.2t
Working Capital loans repavable on demand 833.49

Trade payables 68.09 68.09
Ither financial liabilities 2s.67 24.64 50.25

Tota 859.1( 93.5t 0.91 5.4t 9s9.03

.w>



44.3.3

44.3.t Commodity Risk

inherent to remote areas, and fluctuation of selling price of finished goods viz. tea, coffee and rubber due to increase in supply/availability.

The company manages the above financial risks in the following manner:

i) Sufficient inventory levels of chemicals, fertilisers and other inputs are maintained so that timely corrective action can be taken in case of adverse weather conditions

ii) Slightly higher level of consumable stores viz. packin8 materials, coal and HSD are maintained in order to mitigate financial risk arising from logistics problems.

iii) Sufficient working-capital-facility is obtained from banks in such a way that cultivation, manufacture and sale of tea is not adversely affected even in times of adverse

conditions.

lnterest Rate Risk

borrowing due to their short tenure.

The Company is also exposed to interest rate risk on surplus funds parked in loans. To manage such risks, such loans are granted for short durations with fixed interest rate in

line with the expected business requirements for such funds.

Currency Risk

The Company has no exposure to foreign exchange during the financiat year. There were no foreign exchange derivative contracts dealt by the Company.

Capital Management

The Company objective to manage its capital is to ensure continuity of business while at the same time provide reasonable returns to its various stakeholders but keep

term. Net debt (total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents) to equity ratio is used to monitor capital.

Particulars 31st March 2021 3lst March 2020

Net Debt

Total Equity

Net Debt to Equity Ratio

875.85

7,41635
0.62

840.69
7342.45

0.63

46 Misce!laneous Expenditure includes revenue expenditure on research and development Rs. 1.23 lacs {2020: Rs. 1.42 lacs) incurred towards subscription to Tea Research

' Association.

49

The Govt.of Assam vide notification dated sth June,2021, has announced a provisional increase of Rs.38/- per day on the basic wages with retrospective effect from 22nd

February,2o2l, pending finalisation of minimum wages including interim measure as per provisions laid down under the Minimum Wages Ac!1948. Necessary provision for

increase in wages as per the above notification has been made in accounts for the financial year ended 31st March,2021.

On the basis of notification dated 6th November,2o2o by Govt. of Assam providing 3 year tax holiday on Agricultural lncome Tax,no provision on agricultural income tax has

beencreatedfortheyear ended3lstMarch,2O2!.Further,existingprovisionofdeferredtaxinrespectoftaxholidayperiodhasbeenreversed.

The Taxation Law (Amendments) Ordinance 2019 ('the Ordinance'), provides an option to domestic companies to pay income-tax at a lower 'ate ol 22yo (plus applicable

surcharge and cess) instead of the normal rate of zso/o (plus applicable surcharge and cess) depending on the conditions specified in this behalf under section 115 BM of the

tncome Tax Act, 1961. A domestic company can avail of the lower tax rate only if it opts for not availing of certain exemptions or incentives specified in this behalf in the

Ordinance. There is no time limit prescribed under the above to choose the option of lower tax rate under section 115gBA, however, once chosen it is irreversible.

Based on the Management estimates, the Company has determined that exercising the option of lower rate will not be beneficial at this point of time. Hence, lhe company has

provided for lncome taxas well as deferred tax at a normal rate applicable to company.

relationships and its market position, impact on its business operation, if any, arising from COVID-19 pandemic is not expected to be significant in relation to financial

statements prepared. The actual outcome of these assumptions and estimates may vary in future due to impact of pandemic.

51 previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary, to confirm to the current period's classification

t he Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed.
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